
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YOR1 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 

lJ~'~r SD~Y 

DOCUMENT 
ELECTRONICALLY FILED 

DOC#: Jl_ 

IT Solutions Pvt Ltd. 

Defendants. 

FINAL DEFAULT JUDGMENT AND ORDER FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION AS 
TO DEFENDANTS ZEAL IT SOLUTIONS AND KISHORE GHOSH 

On September 24, 2012, plaintiff Federal Trade Commission ("FTC" or "Commission") 

commenced this action, under Sections 13(b) and 19 ofthe Federal Trade Commission Act 

("FTC Act"), 15 U.S.C. §§ 53(b) and 57b, and the Telemarketing and Consumer Fraud and 

Abuse Prevention Act ("Telemarketing Act"), 15 U.S.C. §§ 6101-6108, to obtain a permanent 

injunction and other equitable relief against Defendants Zeal IT Solutions Pvt Ltd against the Defendants; and on 

October 9, 2012, 

the Court entered a Preliminary Injunction as to the Defendants. Despite being properly served 

and having notice of this action, the Defendants have failed to respond to the Complaint, make 

an appearance in this action, or otherwise take any steps to contest these proceedings. 

Accordingly, pursuant to Rule 55( a) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, the Clerk of Court 

entered defaults against the Defendants on February 6, 2014. 
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Having considered the Declaration and exhibits filed in support of said motion, it is 

ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that Plaintiffs Motion for Default Judgment against the 

Defendants is granted as follows: 

FINDINGS 

The Court, having considered the Complaint and all motions, declarations, exhibits, and 

memoranda of points and authorities filed in this action, finds that: 

A. The Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this case and the parties. 

B. Venue in this district is proper under 15 U.S.C. § 53(b) and 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b) and (c). 

C. Defendants' activities as alleged in the Complaint are "in or affecting commerce" as 

"commerce" is defined in Section 4 ofthe FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 44. 

D. The FTC's Complaint states a claim upon which relief may be granted under Sections 5 

and 13(b) ofthe FTC Act, 15 U.S.C §§ 45, 53(b). 

E. The Defendants have been properly served with the Summons and Complaint, as required 

by Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 4 and authorized by this Court in its August05 Tiv95 401.16 Tc 3.4 Tc 3.85 0 ow9



number on the National Do Not Call Registry in violation ofthe TSR. 16 C.F.R. § 

31 0.4(b )(1 )(iii)(B). 

J. The Defendants, in the course of telemarketing goods and services, have initiated, or 

caused others to initiate, an outbound telephone call to a telephone number within a given area 

code when they had not, either directly or through another Person, paid the required annual fee 

for access to the telephone numbers within that area code that are included in the National Do 

Not Call Registry, in violation ofthe TSR. 16 C.F.R. § 310.8. 

L. The Court finds that, due to the Defendants' default, the FTC is now entitled to a default 

judgment against them pursuant to Rule 55(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. 

N. Because of the Defendants' default, all factual allegations in the Complaint, except those 

relating to damages, are deemed admitted and taken as true. Au Bon Pain Corp. v. Artect, Inc., 

653 F.2d 61,65 (2d Cir. 1981). 

0. The Court has authority, pursuant to Section 13(b) ofthe FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), to 

grant injunctive and other ancillary relief, including rescission or reformation of contracts, 

restitution, the refund of monies paid, and the disgorgement of ill-gotten monies, to prevent and 

remedy any violations of any provision of law enforced by the FTC. 

P. The Court has authority, pursuant to Section 19 ofthe FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 57b, and 

Section 6(b) ofthe Telemarketing Act, 15 U.S.C. § 6105(b), to grant such relief as the Court 

finds necessary to redress injury to consumers resulting from the Defendants' violations of the 

TSR, including the rescission or reformation of contracts, and the refund of money. 

Q. The Court finds that, absent a permanent injunction, the Defendants will likely violate the 

FTC Act and the TSR in the future. 

3 

Case 1:12-cv-07188-PAE   Document 44   Filed 07/10/14   Page 3 of 29



R. The Court finds that the equities weigh in favor of granting a permanent injunction, and 

that such injunction is in the public interest. 

S. This Order is in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other civil or criminal remedies that 

may be provided by law. 

T. Entry of this Order resolves Plaintiffs claims as to the Defendants. Because the 

Defendants are in default and no attorneys have entered an appearance on their behalf, they are 

unlikely to make any further filings before this Court. Because entry of final default judgment as 

to the Defendants would aid in the expeditious resolution of the case and is not likely to lead to 

inconsistent adjudications or logically inconsistent results, there is no just reason for delay in 

certifying this Order as final pursuant to Rule 54(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. 

Accordingly, the Court expressly directs entry of this Default Final Judgment and Order. 

DEFINITIONS 

For the purpose of this order, the following definitions shall apply: 

1. "Assets" means any legal or equitable interest in, right to, or claim to, any real, personal, 

or intellectual property wherever located, including, but not limited to, chattel, goods, 

instruments, equipment, fixtures, general intangibles, effects, leaseholds, premises, contracts, 

mail or other deliveries, shares of stock, list of customer names, inventory, checks, notes, 

accounts, credits, receivables (as those terms are defined in the Uniform Commercial Code), 

funds, cash, and trusts. 

2. "Computer" means any cell phone, handheld device, smartphone, tablet, laptop 

computer, desktop computer, or any other electronic device on which a software program, code, 

script, or other content can be downloaded, installed or run. 
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3. "Defendant" or "Defendants" means Zeal It Solutions and Kishore Ghosh, collectively, 

or in any combination, and their successors and assigns. 

4. "Individual Defendant" means Kishore Ghosh. 

5. "Person" means a natural person, organization, or other legal entity, including a 

corporation, partnership, proprietorship, association, cooperative, government or governmental 

subdivision or agency, or any other group or combination acting as an entity. 

6. "Plaintiff'' means the Federal Trade Commission. 

7. "Representative" means any person insofar as he or she is acting in the capacity of an 

officer, agent, servant, employee, or attorney of the Defendants, and any person or entity in 

active concert or participation with any of the foregoing who receives actual notice of this Order 

by personal service or otherwise. 

8. "Telemarketing" means any plan, program or campaign (whether or not covered by the 

TSR, 16 C.F .R. Part 31 0) that is conducted to induce the purchase of goods or services by means 

of the use of one or more telephones. 

9. The terms "and" and "or" shall be construed conjunctively or disjunctively as necessary, 

and to make the applicable phrase or sentence inclusive rather than exclusive. 

I. 

BAN ON MARKETING OR SALE OF COMPUTER SECURITY 
AND COMPUTER-RELATED TECHNICAL SUPPORT SERVICES 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the Defendants, whether acting directly or 

through any other person, are hereby permanently restrained and enjoined from: 

A. Advertising, marketing, promoting, offering for sale, or selling any computer security or 

computer-related technical support service; and 
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B. Assisting others engaged in advertising, marketing, promoting, offering for sale, or 

selling any computer security or computer-related technical support service. 

II. 

PROHIBITION AGAINST MISREPRESENTATIONS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Defendants and their Representatives, whether 

acting directly or through any corporation, subsidiary, division, or other device, in connection 

with the advertising, marketing, promotion, offering for sale, or sale of any good or service, other 

than computer security or computer-related technical support services, are hereby permanently 

restrained and enjoined from misrepresenting or assisting others in misrepresenting, expressly or 

by implication, any material fact, including but not limited to: 

A. Any material aspect ofthe performance, efficacy, nature, characteristics, benefits, or 

qualities of the good or service; 

B. The total costs to purchase, receive, or use, and the quantity of, the good or service; 

C. Any material restriction, limitation, or condition to purchase, receive, or use the good or 

service; 

D. Any material aspect of the nature or terms of any refund, cancellation, exchange, or 

repurchase policy, including, but not limited to, the likelihood of a consumer obtaining a full or 

partial refund, or the circumstances in which a full or partial refund will be granted to the 

consumer; and 

E. Any material fact, including but not limited to, any 



III. 

PROHIBITION AGAINST VIOLATING 
THE TELEMARKETING SALES RULE 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Defendants and their 



D. From violating any provision of the Telemarketing Sales Rule ("TSR"), 16 C.P.R. Part 

31 0, a copy of which is attached. 

IV. 

BAN ON THE USE OF CONSUMER INFORMATION 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Defendants, whether acting directly or through 

any Person or Representative, are permanently restrained and enjoined from: 

A. Disclosing, using, or benefitting from customer information, including the name, address, 

telephone number, email address, social security number, other identifying information, or any 

data that enables access to a customer's account (including a credit card, bank account, or other 

financial account), of any person which any Defendant named in the Complaint obtained prior to 

entry of this Order. 

B. Failing to dispose of such customer information in all forms in his possession, custody, or 

control within thirty (30) days after entry of this Order. Disposal shall be by means that protect 

against unauthorized access to the customer information, such as by burning, pulverizing, or 

shredding any papers, and by erasing or destroying any electronic media, to ensure that the 

customer information cannot practicably be read or reconstructed. 

Provided, however, that customer information need not be disposed of, and may be disclosed, to 

the extent requested by a government agency or required by a law, regulation, or court order. 
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v. 

LIFTING OF THE ASSET FREEZE 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the freeze on the assets of the Defendants shall be 

lifted permanently. 

VI. 

ORDER ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Defendants obtain acknowledgments of receipt 

ofthis Order: 

A. The Defendants, within 7 days of entry of this Order, must submit to the Commission an 

acknowledgment of receipt of this Order sworn under penalty of perjury. 

B. For five (5) years after entry of this Order, the Defendants, for any business that they, 

individually or collectively with any other Defendant named in the Complaint, is the majority 

owner or directly or indirectly controls, must deliver a copy of this Order to: (1) all principals, 

officers, directors, and LLC managers and members; (2) all employees, agents, and 

representatives who participate in telemarketing; and (3) any business entity resulting from any 

change in structure as set forth in the Section titled Compliance Reporting. Delivery must occur 

within 7 days of entry of this Order for current personnel. For all others, delivery must occur 

before they assume their responsibilities. 

C. From each individual or entity to which the Defendants delivered a copy of this Order, 

they must obtain, within thirty (30) days, a signed and dated acknowledgment of receipt ofthis 

Order. 
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VII. 



(8) provide a copy of each 



E. Unless 



IX. 

COMPLIANCE MONITORING 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for the purpose 



X. 

RETENTION OF JURISDICTION 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Court retains jurisdiction of this matter for 

purposes of construction, modification, and enforcement of this Order. 

I 0 fV\ ;:r vvw 
IT IS SO ORDERED, this ________ day of J 2014. 
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fk!_ ~- r;:~ 
Judge Paul A. Engelmayer 
United States District Judge 
Southern District ofNew York 
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ATTACHMENT A 
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PART 31G-TELEMARKETING SALES 
RULE 16 CFR PART 310 

Sec. 
310.1 Scope of regulations in this part. 
310.2 Definitions. 
310.3 Deceptive telemarketing acts or prac­

tices. 
310.4 Abusive telemarketing acts or prac-

tices. 
310.5 Recordkeeping requirements. 
310.6 Exemptions. 
310.7 Actions by states and private persons. 
310.8 Fee for access to the National Do Not 

Call Registry. 
310.9 Severability. 

AUTHORITY: 15 U.S.C. 6101-{)108. 

SOURCE: 75 FR 48516, Aug. 10, 2010, unless 
otherwise noted. 

§ 310.1 Scope of regulations in this 
part. 

This part implements the Tele­
marketing and Consumer Fraud and 
Abuse Prevention Act, 15 U.S.C. 6101-
6108, as amended. 

§ 310.2 Definitions. 
(a) Acquirer means a business organi­

zation, financial institution, or an 
agent of a business organization or fi­
nancial institution that has authority 
from an organization that operates or 
licenses a credit card system to author­
ize merchants to accept, transmit, or 
process payment by credit card 
through the credit card system for 
money, goods or services, or anything 
else of value. 

380 
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Federal Trade Commission 

(b) Attorney General means the chief 
legal officer of a state. 

(c) Billing information means any data 
that enables any person to access a 
customer's or donor's account, such as 
a credit card, checking, savings, share 
or similar account, utility bill, mort­
gage loan account, or debit card. 

(d) Caller identification service means a 
service that allows a telephone sub­
scriber to have the telephone number, 
and, where available, name of the call­
ing party transmitted contempora­
neously with the telephone call, and 
displayed on a device in or connected 
to the subscriber's telephone. 

(e) Cardholder means a person to 
whom a credit card is issued or who is 
authorized to use a credit card on be­
half of or in addition to the person to 
whom the credit card is issued. 

(f) Charitable contribution means any 
donation or gift of money or any other 
thing of value. 

(g) Commission means the Federal 
Trade Commission. 

(h) Credit means the right granted by 
a creditor to a debtor to defer payment 
of debt or to incur debt and defer its 
payment. 

(i) Credit card means any card, plate, 
coupon book, or other credit device ex­
isting for the purpose of obtaining 
money, property, labor, or services on 
credit. 

(j) Credit card sales draft means any 
record or evidence of a credit card 
transaction. 

(k) Credit card system means any 
method or procedure used to process 
credit card transactions involving cred­
it cards issued or licensed by the oper­
ator of that system. 

(1) Customer means any person who is 
or may be required to pay for goods or 
services offered through tele­
marketing. 

(m) Debt relief service means any pro­
gram or service represented, directly or 
by implication, to renegotiate, settle, 
or in any way alter the terms of pay­
ment or other terms of the debt be­
tween a person and one or more unse­
cured creditors or debt collectors, in­
cluding, but not limited to, a reduction 
in the balance, interest rate, or fees 
owed by a person to an unsecured cred­
itor or debt collector. 

§310.2 

(n) Donor means any person solicited 
to make a charitable contribution. 

(o) Established business the or 
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§310.3 

(v) Outbound telephone call means a 
telephone call initiated by a tele­
marketer to induce the purchase of 
goods or services or to solicit a chari­
table contribution. 

(w) Person means any individual, 
group, unincorporated association, lim­
ited or general partnership, corpora­
tion, or other business entity. 

(x) Preacquired account information 
means any information that enables a 
seller or telemarketer to cause a 
charge to be placed against a cus­
tomer's or donor's account without ob­
taining the account number directly 
from the customer or donor during the 
telemarketing transaction pursuant to 
which the account will be charged. 

(y) Prize means anything offered, or 
purportedly offered, and given, or pur­
portedly given, to a person by chance. 
For purposes of this definition, chance 
exists if a person is guaranteed to re­
ceive an item and, at the time of the 
offer or purported offer, the tele­
marketer does not identify the specific 
item that the person will receive. 

(z) Prize promotion meansb821.33 TTj 9.47119person 0 8.8459.84 438.61 T28.34 464.28 524.28ansbA.05 Tc 9.0021 0 08.8 199.93 8.8 204.47nsbA.05 TTc 8.8 0 0 8.80.04898T28.34 464.28 ox40 0 8.8 234.23 -.Tm (guara00c 8.8 0 0 8.m (purport 0 8.8 234o8.8 233.68  )Tj  0 95e 8.m70 0 0 88.8 0 0c8fra00c 8.8 0 0 j  0 95e7Abb 204.21.33 T 8..8 0.068  )Tj  0 9fTj -0.0265ecific 



Federal Trade Commission 

failing to disclose truthfully, in a clear 
and conspicuous manner, the following 
material information: 

(i) The total costs to purchase, re­
ceive, or use, and the quantity of, any 
goods or services that are the subject 
of the sales offer; 66o 

(ii) All material restrictions, limita­
tions, or conditions to purchase, re­
ceive, or use the goods or services that 
are the subject of the sales offer; 

(iii) If the seller has a policy of not 
making refunds, cancellations, ex­
changes, or repurchases, a statement 
informing the customer that this is the 
seller's policy; or, if the seller or tele­
marketer makes a representation 
about a refund, cancellation, exchange, 
or repurchase policy, a statement of all 
material terms and conditions of such 
policy; 

(iv) In any prize promotion, the odds 
of being able to receive the prize, and, 
if the odds are not calculable in ad­
vance, the factors used in calculating 
the odds; that no purchase or payment 
is required to win a prize or to partici­
pate in a prize promotion and that any 
purchase or payment will not increase 
the person's chances of winning; and 
the no-purchase/no-payment method of 
participating in the prize promotion 
with either instructions on how to par­
ticipate or an address or local or toll­
free telephone number to which cus­
tomers may write or call for informa­
tion on how to participate; 

(v) All material costs or conditions 
to receive or redeem a prize that is the 
subject of the prize promotion; 

(vi) In the sale of any goods or serv­
ices represented to protect, insure, or 
otherwise limit a customer's liability 
in the event of unauthorized use of the 
customer's credit card, the limits on a 
cardholder's liability for unauthorized 
use of a credit card pursuant to 15 
u.s.c. t o  
t o  



§310.3 

services any of the following material 
information: 

(i) The total costs to purchase, re­
ceive, or use, and the quantity of, any 
goods 





§310.4 

§ 310.4 Abusive telemarketing acts or 
practices. 

(a) Abusive conduct generally. 
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funds in the account, other than funds 
earned by the debt relief service in 
compliance with § 310.4(a)(5)(i)(A) 
through (C), within seven (7) business 
days of the customer's request. 

(6) Disclosing or receiving, for con­
sideration, unencrypted consumer ac­
count numbers for use in tele­
marketing; provided, however, that 
this paragraph shall not apply to the 
disclosure or receipt of a customer's or 
donor's billing information to process a 
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(D) This paragraph (v) shall not apply 
to any outbound telephone call that de­
livers a prerecorded healthcare mes­
sage made by, or on behalf of, a covered 
entity or its business associate, as 
those terms are defined in the HIP AA 
Privacy Rule, 45 CFR 160.103. 

(2) It is an abusive telemarketing act 
or practice and a violation of this Rule 
for any person to sell, rent, lease, pur­
chase, or use any list established to 
comply with §310.4(b)(1)(iii)(A), or 
maintained by the Commission pursu­
ant to §310.4(b)(1)(iii)(B), for any pur­
pose except compliance with the provi­
sions of this Rule or otherwise to pre­
vent 
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participate in a prize promotion if a 
prize promotion is offered and that any 
purchase or payment will not increase 
the person's chances of winning. This 
disclosure must be made before or in 
conjunction with the description of the 
prize to the person called. If requested 
by that person, the telemarketer must 
disclose the no-purchase/no-payment 
entry method for the prize promotion; 
provided, however, that, in any inter­
nal upsell for the sale of goods or serv­
ices, the seller or telemarketer must 
provide the disclosures listed in this 
section only to the extent that the in­
formation in the upsell differs from the 
disclosures provided in the initial tele­
marketing transaction. 

(e) Required oral disclosures in chari­
table solicitations. It is an abusive tele­
marketing act or practice and a viola­
tion of this Rule for a telemarketer, in 
an outbound telephone call to induce a 
charitable contribution, to fail to dis­
close truthfully, promptly, and in a 
clear and conspicuous manner to the 
person receiving the call, the following 
information: 

(1) The identity of the charitable or­
ganization on behalf of which the re­
quest is being made; and 

(2) That the purpose of the call is to 
solicit a charitable contribution. 
[75 FR 48516, Aug. 10, 2010, as amended at 76 
FR 58716, Sept. 22, 2011] 

§ 310.5 Recordkeeping requirements. 
(a) Any seller or telemarketer shall 

keep, for a period of 24 months from 
the date the record is produced, the fol­
lowing records relating to its tele­
marketing activities: 

(1) All substantially different adver-
tising, brochures, telemarketing 
scripts, and promotional materials; 

(2) The name and last known address 
of each prize recipient and the prize 
awarded for prizes that are rep­
resented, directly or by implication, to 
have a value of $25.00 or more; 

(3) The name and last known address 
of each customer, the goods or services 
purchased, the date such goods or serv­
ices were shipped or provided, and the 
amount paid by the customer for the 
goods or services;ss7 

667 For offers of consumer credit products 
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(4) The name, any fictitious name 
used, the last known home address and 
telephone number, and the job title(s) 
for all current and former employees 
directly involved in telephone sales or 
solicitations; provided, however, that if 
the seller or telemarketer permits fic­
titious names to be used by employees, 
each fictitious name must be traceable 
to only one specific employee; and 

(5) All verifiable authorizations or 
records of express informed consent or 
express agreement required to be pro­
vided or received under this Rule. 

(b) A seller or telemarketer may 
keep the records required by § 310.5(a) 
in any form, and in the same manner, 
format, or place as they keep such 
records in the ordinary course of busi­
ness. Failure to keep all records re­
quired by § 310.5(a) shall be a violation 
of this Rule. 

(c) The seller and the telemarketer 
calling on behalf of the seller may, by 
written agreement, allocate responsi­
bility between themselves for the rec­
ordkeeping required by this Section. 
When a seller and telemarketer have 
entered into such an agreement, the 
terms of that agreement shall govern, 
and the seller or telemarketer, as the 
case may be, need not keep records 
that duplicate those of the other. If the 
agreement is unclear as to who must 
maintain any required record(s), or if 
no such agreement exists, the seller 
shall be responsible for complying with 
§§ 310.5(a)(1)-(3) and (5); the tele­
marketer shall be responsible for com­
plying with §310.5(a)(4). 

(d) In the event of any dissolution or 
termination of the seller's or tele­
marketer's business, the principal of 
that seller or telemarketer shall main­
tain all records as required under this 
section. In the event of any sale, as­
signment, or other change in ownership 
of the seller's or telemarketer's busi­
ness, the successor business shall main­
tain all records required under this sec­
tion. 

U.S.C. 1601 et seq., and Regulation Z, 12 CFR 
226, compliance with the recordkeeping re­
quirements under the Truth in Lending Act, 
and Regulation Z, shall constitute compli­
ance with § 310.5(a)(3) of this Rule. 
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§ 310.6 Exemptions. 
(a) Solicitations to induce charitable 

contributions via outbound telephone 
calls are not covered 
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calls to consumers, service providers 


